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FINANCE, BUDGET AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
MAY 16, 2018

SUBJECT: BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND COMPONENT
AUDITS
ACTION: RECEIVE AND FILE

RECOMMENDATION

RECEIVE AND FILE the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority’s (Metro) basic
financial statements and component financial statement audits completed by Crowe Horwath LLP
(Crowe) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017.

ISSUE

Metro is required to be audited annually by independent certified public accountants. The resulting
reports include Metro’s basic financial statements and following component audits for the year ended
June 30, 2017:

» Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Los Angeles County Metropolitan
Transportation Authority for the year ended June 30, 2017;

» Independent auditors’ SAS 114 letter covering required communications;

» Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority Single Audit Report Fiscal year
ended June 30, 2017;

» Independent Accountants’ Report on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures on the Los Angeles
County Metropolitan Transportation Authority’s Federal Funding Allocation Data for the
Transportation Operating Agency (ID# 90154) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017,

» Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
with the California Code of Regulations (Section 6667) and Other Matters Based on an Audit
of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards and
Report on 50% Expenditure Limitation Schedule for the Los Angeles County Metropolitan
Transportation Authority Transportation Development Act Operations Agency for the year
ended June 30, 2017;

» Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
with the California Code of Regulations (Section 6640-6662) and Other Matters Based on an
Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards
and Report on Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances for the
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Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority Transportation Development Act &
Prop 1B PTMISEA Planning Agency for the year ended June 30, 2017;

> Independent Auditors’ Report on the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority
State Transit Assistance Special Revenue Fund’s basic financial statements as of and for the
years ending June 30, 2017 and 2016;

» Independent Auditors’ Report on the Crenshaw Project Corporation (A Component Unit of the
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority) basic financial statements as of
June 30, 2017;

» Independent Auditors’ Report on the Service Authority for Freeway Emergencies’ (A
Component Unit of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority) financial
statements for the years ending June 30, 2017 and 2016; and

» Independent Auditor’'s Report on Compliance with Rules and Regulations of the Low Carbon
Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) and Report on Internal Control over Compliance for the
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority’s compliance with the LCTOP
Guidelines for the year ended June 30, 2017.

DISCUSSION

Metro’s basic financial statements include our audited financial statements, supplemental information
and unmodified opinion from Crowe, the independent auditor. Crowe issued unmodified opinions
(clean; no findings) on all audit reports for FY17. However, during the FY17 audit process, Crowe
reissued the FY15 and FY16 Single Audit reports to include a finding related to a federal
Transportation Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (TIFIA) program. In FY15, the TIFIA
program was a new federal loan program for Metro, in which the agency pays using local funding. As
such, Metro erroneously excluded TIFIA program expenditures of $37,477,492 and $467,796,377 for
FY15 and FY16 respectively from the federal expenditures in the Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal and State Awards (SEFA). Instead, the amounts were presented as Local Share
expenditures on the SEFA, but should have been presented as federal expenditures.

As a result, Crowe considered the finding to be a material weakness for the FY15 and the FY16
Single Audit reports. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. As of the March 28,
2018 reissuance report date, Metro already corrected the issue by properly reporting the amounts
under Federal Expenditures.

Due to the considerable size of the document, we have not attached Metro’s basic financial
statements. Instead, as a savings measure a hard copy of the Basic Financial Statements is on file
with the Board Secretary and is also available on the Metro website.

<https://media.metro.net/about us/finance/images/fy17 cafr.pdf>

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A - Crowe Horwath’s Management Letter dated March 29, 2018
Attachment B - Independent auditors’ SAS 114 letter covering required communications;
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Attachment C - Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority Single Audit Reports for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017;

Attachment D - Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Federal Funding Allocation Data
Transportation Operating Agency (ID# 90154) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 (With
Independent Accountants’ Report on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures Thereon);

Attachment E - Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority Transportation
Development Act Operations Agency Year ended June 30, 2017;

Attachment F - Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority Transportation
Development Act & Prop 1B PTMISEA Planning Agency for the year ended June 30, 2016;
Attachment G - Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority State Transit Assistance
Special Revenue Fund Basic Financial Statements June 30, 2017 and 2016 (With Independent
Auditors’ Report Thereon);

Attachment H - Crenshaw Project Corporation (A Component Unit of the Los Angeles County
Metropolitan Transportation Authority) Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2017 (With
Independent Auditors’ Report Thereon);

Attachment | - Service Authority for Freeway Emergencies (A Component Unit of the Los Angeles
County Metropolitan Transportation Authority) Financial Statements and Other Supplementary
Information June 30, 2017 and 2016 (With Independent Auditors’ Report Thereon);

Attachment J - Independent Auditor’s Report for Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation
Authority’s compliance with the Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) for the year ended
June 30, 2017

Attachment K - Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority Single Audit Reports for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015

Attachment L - Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority Single Audit Reports for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2016

Prepared by: Lauren Choi, Sr. Manager, Audit
(213) 922-3926
Monica Del Toro, Audit Support Manager
(213) 922-7494

Reviewed by: Diana Estrada, Chief Auditor
(213) 922-2161

g

Phillip A. Washington \
Chief Executive Officer '
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LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

SINGLE AUDIT REPORT

Fiscal year ended June 30, 2017

Attachment C



LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
Los Angeles, California

SINGLE AUDIT REPORT
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2017

CONTENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS ...t

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
FEDERAL PROGRAM; REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE;
AND REPORT ON THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE ...

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS ........ccccooiiiiiieeecc,

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS. ..........cccccovennee.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS ......coiiiiiiiiiiciicie e

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS.........ccoooiiiiiiieeece
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Crowe Horwath LLP
Independent Member Crowe Horwath International

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority
Los Angeles, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (LACMTA) as of and for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the basic financial statements, which collectively comprise
LACMTA's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 19, 2017. Our
report includes a reference to other auditors who audited the financial statements of the defined benefit
pension plan financial statements of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority
Retirement Income Plans, as described in our report on LACMTA'’s financial statements. The financial
statements of the defined benefit pension plan of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation
Authority Retirement Income Plans were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered LACMTA's internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of LACMTA's internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of LACMTA's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that
have not been identified.




Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether LACMTA'’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of nhoncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

C/mw-(_ H—b»\..”bﬂu L—LP

Crowe Horwath LLP
Sherman Oaks, California
March 29, 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM;
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT ON THE SCHEDULE OF
EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority
Los Angeles, California

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority’s (LACMTA) compliance with
the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a
direct and material effect on each of LACMTA'’s major federal programs for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2017. LACMTA’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions
of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of LACMTA'’s major federal programs
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about LACMTA’s compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for
each major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of LACMTA’s
compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, LACMTA complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements

referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2017.




Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of LACMTA is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our
audit of compliance, we considered LACMTA'’s internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of LACMTA's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may
exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards Required by Uniform Guidance

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of LACMTA as of and for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise LACMTA’s
basic financial statements. We issued our report thereon dated December 19, 2017, which contained
unmodified opinions on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming
opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards is presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal and state
awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Crowe Hrawenn LLP

Crowe Horwath LLP
Sherman Oaks, California
March 29, 2018
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LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2017

NOTE 1 - GENERAL

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards (the Schedule) presents the grant
activity of all expenditures of federal and state award programs of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan
Transportation Authority (LACMTA) in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). All federal awards received directly from federal agencies, as well as
federal awards passed through other government agencies, are included in the Schedule. The Schedule
also includes state grants that do not participate in the federal awards. LACMTA is the reporting entity as
defined in Note 1 to the financial statements of LACMTA'’s basic financial statements.

NOTE 2 — BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Expenditures are
recognized following, as applicable, either the cost principles in OMB Circular A-87, Cost Principles for
State, Local, and Indian Tribal Governments or the cost principles contained in Uniform Guidance, wherein
certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Negative amounts
shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of business to amounts
reported as expenditures in prior years. LACMTA has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect
cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 3 — STATE AND LOCAL FUNDS REIMBURSEMENT

LACMTA utilizes state and local funds when federal funds are not received in a timely manner. Upon receipt
of federal funds, LACMTA reimburses state and local funds that were utilized for expenditures for federal
programs. Reimbursements are shown as credit balances in the Schedule. Expenditures incurred during
the current fiscal year, but before a federal grant is executed are included as state or local on the Schedule
in the year the expenditures are incurred and are reported as federal on the Schedule in the year the grant
was executed. The Schedule includes all federal and state grant and loan expenditures, however, the
Schedule only includes local expenditures as they relate to the federal and state funded projects.

NOTE 4 - FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

Pursuant to the Single Audit Act and Uniform Guidance Compliance Supplement, the federal financial
assistance is defined as assistance provided by a federal agency, either directly or indirectly, in the form of
grants, contracts, cooperative agreements, loans, loan guarantees, property, interest subsidies, insurance,
or direct appropriations. Accordingly, nonmonetary federal assistance is included in federal financial
assistance and, therefore, is reported on the Schedule, if applicable. Federal financial assistance does not
include direct federal cash assistance to individuals. Solicited contracts between the state and federal
government for which the federal government procures tangible goods or services are not considered to be
federal financial assistance. For CFDA #20.233, $90,700,940 included in the Schedule represents current
year loan proceeds that were originally incurred in prior years.

NOTE 5 - MAJOR PROGRAMS

The Single Audit Act and Uniform Guidance establish criteria to be used in defining major federal financial
assistance programs. Major programs for LACMTA are those programs selected for testing by the auditor
using a risk assessment model, as well as certain minimum expenditure requirements, as outlined in
Uniform Guidance. Programs with similar requirements may be grouped into a cluster for testing purposes.

(Continued)



LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2017

NOTE 6 —- COMMINGLED ASSISTANCE

The LACMTA receives federal and state funding as a subrecipient through the State of California’s
Department of Transportation (Caltrans). The expenditures reported in the accompanying Schedule for
CFDA 20.205, U.S. Department of Transportation — Highway Planning and Construction (grant #07-4826),
represent commingled federal and state funding received from Caltrans. The sources of funding passed
through Caltrans include state funding from the Traffic Congestion Relief Program (TCRP) and the State
Transportation Program - Local (STPL) and Federal funding from the Federal Regional Surface
Transportation Program (RSTP) and the Safe, Accountable, Flexible, Efficient Transportation Equity Act: a
Legacy for Users (SAFETEA-LU). The program also includes Local Proposition C-25% funding provided
by LACMTA. When the sources of funding from Caltrans are not separately identifiable, LACMTA'’s policy
is to report amounts expended under the program first as federal expenditures up to the approved budgeted
amount and then the remaining expenditures will be reported as state expenditures.




LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Fiscal year ended June 30, 2017

SECTION | - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS
Financial Statements:

Type of report the auditor issued on whether

the financial statements audited were prepared

in accordance with GAAP:

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?
Federal Awards:
Internal control over major federal programs:

Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for
major federal programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?

Identification of major federal programs:
CFDA 20.500/20.507 / 20.525

CFDA 20.319

Dollar threshold used to distinguish type A and B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Unmodified

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Unmodified

Yes

X No

X None reported

X No

X No

X None reported

Federal Transit Cluster

High-Speed Rail Corridors and Intercity
Passenger Rail Service — Capital
Assistance Grants - ARRA

$

3,000,000

Yes

X No

(Continued)
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LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2017

SECTION Il - FINDINGS RELATING TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, WHICH ARE REQUIRED TO
BE REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED GOVERNMENT AUDITING
STANDARDS

None

SECTION Il - FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS INCLUDING AUDIT
FINDINGS AS DEFINED IN TITLE 2 U.S. CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS PART 200, UNIFORM
ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS, COST PRINCIPLES, AND AUDIT REQUIREMENTS FOR
FEDERAL AWARDS

None

11.



LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2017

Finding 2016-001 — Preparation of Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards (Material
Weakness)

Condition: The Transportation Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (TIFIA) Program (CFDA # 20.223)
activity was not presented by management as federal expenditures and instead was reported in the Local
Share expenditures column of the schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards.

Status: This matter is considered resolved as of March 29, 2018.

12.
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Crowe Horwath. Crowe Horwath LLP

Independent Member Crowe Horwath International

Independent Accountant’s Report
on Applying Agreed Upon Procedures

Management and the Board of Directors
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority
Los Angeles, California

The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) has established the following standards with regard to the data
reported to it in the Federal Funding Allocation Statistics form (FFA-10) of the Los Angeles County
Metropolitan Transportation Authority’s (the Authority) annual National Transit Database (NTD) report:

e A system is in place and maintained for recording data in accordance with NTD definitions. The
correct data are being measured and no systematic errors exist.

e A system is in place to record data on a continuing basis, and the data gathering is an ongoing
effort.

e Source documents are available to support the reported data and are maintained for FTA review
and audit for a minimum of three years following FTA's receipt of the NTD report. The data are
fully documented and securely stored.

e A system of internal controls is in place to ensure the data collection process is accurate and that
the recording system and reported comments are not altered. Documents are reviewed and
signed by a supervisor, as required.

e The data collection methods are those suggested by FTA or otherwise meet FTA requirements.

e The deadhead miles, computed as the difference between the reported total actual vehicle miles
data and the reported total actual vehicle revenue miles (VRM) data, appear to be accurate.

e Data is consistent with prior reporting periods and other facts known about the Authority’s
operations.

We have applied the procedures, as described in Attachment A, to the data contained in the
accompanying FFA-10 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2017. Such procedures, which were agreed to
and specified by FTA in the Declarations section of the 2017 Policy Manual and were agreed to by the
Authority management and the Board of Directors, were applied to assist the Authority in evaluating
whether the Authority complied with the standards described in the first paragraph of this part and that the
information included in the NTD report FFA-10 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2017 is presented in
conformity with the requirements of the Uniform System of Accounts (USOA) and Records and Reporting
System; Final Rule, as specified in 49 CFR Part 630, Federal Register, January 15, 1993 and as
presented in the 2017 Policy Manual. The District management is responsible for the FFA-10 and
compliance with NTD requirements. The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility of the
parties specified in this report. Consequently, we make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the
procedures enumerated below either for the purpose for which this report has been requested or for any
other purpose.



The procedures in Attachment A were applied separately to each of the information systems used to
develop the reported actual vehicle revenue miles (VRM), fixed guideway (FG), directional route miles
(DRM), passenger miles traveled (PMT), and operating expenses (OE) of the Authority for the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2017 for each of the following modes:

Motor Bus — directly operated

Motor Bus — purchased transportation
Rapid Bus — directly operated

Heavy Rail — directly operated

Light Rail — directly operated

Vanpool — purchased transportation

In performing the procedures, except for the information identified in Attachment A to this report, no
matters came to our attention that would be required to be reported to you regarding the information
included in the NTD report on the FFA-10 Form for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2017. This agreed-
upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. We were not engaged to and did not conduct an
examination or review, the objective of which would be the expression of an opinion or conclusion,
respectively, on conformity with the requirements of the Uniform System of Accounts (USOA) and
Records and Reporting System; Final Rule, as specified in 49 CFR Part 630, Federal Register, January
15, 1993 and as presented in the 2017 Policy Manual. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or
conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that
would have been reported to you. This report relates only to the information described above, and does
not extend to the Authority’s financial statements taken as a whole, or the forms in the Authority’s NTD
report other than the FFA-10 form, for any date or period.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors, the management of
the Authority, and the FTA and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

Crowse. l""b-«..-,‘h. LLP

Crowe Horwath LLP

Los Angeles, California
October 31, 2017



LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
ATTACHMENT A — AGREED UPON PROCEDURES
June 30, 2017

FTA Suggested Procedures:

a.

Obtain and read a copy of written procedures related to the system for reporting and maintaining data
in accordance with the NTD requirements and definitions set forth in 49 CFR Part 630, Federal
Register, dated January 15, 1993 and as presented in the 2017 Policy Manual. If procedures are not
written, discuss the procedures with the personnel assigned responsibility of supervising the NTD
data preparation and maintenance.

Step performed without exception.

Discuss the procedures (written or informal) with the personnel assigned responsibility of supervising
the preparation and maintenance of NTD data to determine:

e The extent to which the transit agency followed the procedures on a continuous basis, and

e Whether they believe such procedures result in accumulation and reporting of data consistent
with the NTD definitions and requirements set forth in 49 CFR Part 630, Federal Register, dated
January 15, 1993 and as presented in the 2017 Policy Manual.

Step performed without exception.

Ask these same personnel about the retention policy that the transit agency follows as to source
documents supporting NTD data reported on the Federal Funding Allocation Statistics form (FFA-10).

Step performed without exception.

Based on a description of the transit agency's procedures obtained in items a and b above, identify all
the source documents that the transit agency must retain for a minimum of three years. For each type
of source document, select three months out of the year and determine whether the document exists
for each of these periods.

Selected source documents from three different months in fiscal years 2016, 2015, and 2014
(7/3/2013, 12/20/2013, 3/8/2014, 11/13/2014, 1/8/2015, 5/8/2015, 8/13/2015, 12/8/2015, 4/7/2016) to
ensure they were retained for a minimum of three years. We observed that the source
documents were maintained for each fiscal year as required.

Discuss the system of internal controls. Inquire whether separate individuals (independent of the
individuals preparing source documents and posting data summaries) review the source documents
and data summaries for completeness, accuracy, and reasonableness and how often these
individuals perform such reviews.

Per inquiry with the management, the individuals reviewing source documents are
independent of individuals preparing the information and the review is done on a periodic
basis depending on the data being reviewed.

Select a haphazard sample of source documents and determine whether supervisors' signatures are
present as required by the system of internal controls. If supervisors' signatures are not required,
inquire how personnel document supervisors’ review.

Selected a haphazard sample of 103 source documents, noting the required approval on all
source documents. Step performed without exception.



LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
ATTACHMENT A — AGREED UPON PROCEDURES
June 30, 2017

Obtain the worksheets used to prepare the final data that the transit agency transcribes onto the
Federal Funding Allocation Statistics form. Compare the periodic data included on the worksheets to
the periodic summaries prepared by the transit agency. Test the arithmetical accuracy of the
summaries.

We obtained the worksheets and agreed the data on the worksheets to the summaries
provided and verified the arithmetical accuracy of the summaries without exception.

Discuss the procedure for accumulating and recording passenger miles traveled (PMT) data in
accordance with NTD requirements with transit agency staff. Inquire whether the procedure is one of
the methods specifically approved in the 2017 Policy Manual.

For the rail and van pool modes, the Authority utilized a statistical sampling method as
described in FTA Circulars 2710.1A. For the motor bus modes, the Authority utilized a 100%
count verification for passenger trips and an estimate of passenger miles based on a
statistical sampling method as described in FTA Circulars 2710.2A.

Discuss with transit agency staff, the transit agency's eligibility to conduct statistical sampling for PMT
data every third year. Determine whether the transit agency meets NTD criteria that allow transit
agencies to conduct statistical samples for accumulating PMT data every third year rather than
annually. Specifically:

a. According to the 2010 Census, the public transit agency serves an urbanized area
(UZA) of less than 500,000 population.

b. The public transit agency directly operates fewer than 100 revenue vehicles in all modes
in annual maximum revenue service (VOMS) (in any size UZA).

c. Service purchased from a seller is included in the transit agency's NTD report.

d. For transit agencies that meet one of the above criteria, review the NTD documentation
for the most recent mandatory sampling year (2017) and determine that statistical
sampling was conducted and meets the 95% confidence and +10% precision
requirements.

e. Determine how the transit agency estimated annual PMT for the current report year.

Per inquiry with the Authority management, the Authority does not meet any of the three
criteria that allows transit agencies to conduct statistical samples for accumulating passenger
mile data every third year. Therefore, the Authority conducts statistical sampling annually as
described in procedure h.

Obtain a description of the sampling procedure for estimation of PMT data used by the transit agency.
Obtain a copy of the transit agency's working papers or methodology used to select the actual sample
of runs for recording PMT data. If the transit agency used average trip length, determine that the
universe of runs was the sampling frame. Determine that the methodology used to select specific
runs from the universe resulted in a haphazard selection of runs. If the transit agency missed a
selected sample run, determine that a replacement sample run was haphazard. Determine that the
transit agency followed the stated sampling procedure.

Step performed without exception.



LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
ATTACHMENT A — AGREED UPON PROCEDURES
June 30, 2017

Select a haphazard sample of the source documents for accumulating PMT data and determine that
the data are complete (all required data are recorded) and that the computations are accurate. Select
a haphazard sample of the accumulation periods and re-compute the accumulations for each of the
selected periods. List the accumulation periods that were tested. Test the arithmetical accuracy of
the summarization.

Selected a haphazard sample of 72 source documents across all modes from all twelve
months in fiscal year 2017, used for accumulating passenger miles traveled (PMT) data and
determined they were complete and mathematically accurate. We tested the average trip
length and the total trips for each of the samples and recomputed the accumulations for each
period. Step performed without exception.

Discuss the procedures for systematic exclusion of charter, school bus, and other ineligible vehicle
miles from the calculation of actual vehicle revenue miles with transit agency staff and identify that
stated procedures are followed. Select a haphazard sample of source documents used to record
charter bus service and test the arithmetical accuracy of the computations.

Step performed without exception.

. For actual vehicle revenue miles (VRM) data, document the collection and recording methodology
and identify that deadhead miles are systematically excluded from the computation. This is
accomplished as follows:

e [f actual VRMs are calculated from schedules, document the procedures used to subtract missed
trips. Select a haphazard sample of the days that service is operated, and re-compute the daily
total of missed trips and missed VRMs. Test the arithmetical accuracy of the summary.

e |f actual VRMs are calculated from hubodometers, document the procedures used to calculate
and subtract deadhead mileage. Select a haphazard sample of the hubodometer readings and
determine that the stated procedures for hubodometer deadhead mileage adjustments are
applied as prescribed. Test the arithmetical accuracy of the summary of intermediate
accumulations.

o |f actual VRMs are calculated from vehicle logs, select haphazard samples of the vehicle logs and
determine that the deadhead mileage has been correctly computed in accordance with FTA
definitions.

Vehicle logs are used to compute the VRM data for non-fixed routes. For fixed routes, the
Authority uses monthly services reports and daily loss service records to record any missed
trips. The VP-PT mode does not have any deadhead miles. Selected a haphazard sample of
72 source documents across all modes, except for VP-PT, and recalculated the VRMs for the
sample of trips, excluding deadhead miles. Step performed without exception.

For rail modes, obtain and read the recording and accumulation sheets for actual VRM's and identify
that locomotive miles are not included in the computation.

Step performed without exception. There are no locomotives.
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TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
ATTACHMENT A — AGREED UPON PROCEDURES
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o. If fixed guideway or High Intensity Bus directional route miles (FG or HIB DRM) are reported,
interview the person responsible for maintaining and reporting the NTD data whether the operations
meet the FTA definition of fixed guideway (FG) or High Intensity Bus (HIB) in that the service is:

e Rail, trolleybus (TB), ferryboat (FB), or aerial tramway (TR) or
e Bus (MB) service operating over exclusive or controlled access rights-of-way (ROW), and

0 Access is restricted

0 Legitimate need for restricted access is demonstrated by peak period level of service D
or worse on parallel adjacent highway, and

0 Restricted access is enforced for freeways; priority lanes used by other high occupancy
vehicles (HOV) (i.e., vanpools (VP), carpools) must demonstrate safe operation (see
Fixed Guideway Segments form (P-40))

o High Occupancy / Toll (HO/T) lanes meet FHWA requirements for traffic flow and use of
toll revenues, and that the transit agency has provided to NTD a copy of the State’s
certification to the US Secretary of Transportation that it has established a program for
monitoring, assessing and reporting on the operation of the HOV facility with HO/T lanes.

Step performed without exception.

p. Discuss the measurement of FG and HIB DRM with the person reporting NTD data and determine
that the he or she computed mileage in accordance with the FTA definitions of FG/HIB and DRM.
Inquire of any service changes during the year that resulted in an increase or decrease in DRMs. If a
service change resulted in a change in overall DRMs, re-compute the average monthly DRMs, and
reconcile the total to the FG/HIB DRM reported on the Federal Funding Allocation Statistics form.

Per inquiry of management, no new FG segments were added in fiscal year 2017.

g. Inquire if any temporary interruptions in transit service occurred during the report year. If these
interruptions were due to maintenance or rehabilitation improvements to a FG segment(s), the
following apply:

e Report DRMs for the segment(s) for the entire report year if the interruption is less than 12
months in duration. Report the months of operation on the FG/HIB segments form as 12. The
transit agency should document the interruption.

e If the improvements cause a service interruption on the FG-DRMs lasting more than 12
months, the transit agency should contact their validation analyst to discuss. FTA will make a
determination on how the DRMs should be reported.

Per inquiry of management there were no interruptions in service during fiscal year 2017 that
would require a change in reporting.

r.  Measure FG/HIB DRM from maps or by retracing route.
We measured all of the FG/HIB maps. Step performed without exception.

s. Discuss whether other public transit agencies operate service over the same FG/HIB as the transit
agency. If yes, determine that the transit agency coordinated with the other transit agency (or
agencies) such that the DRMs for the segment of FG/HIB are reported only once to the NTD on the
Federal Funding Allocation form. Each transit agency should report the actual VRM, PMT, and OE for
the service operated over the same FG/HIB.

Per inquiry of management, the Authority is the approved operator for all of their FG and the
Authority is reporting their actual VRM, PMT, and OE for their services. Step performed
without exception.
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Review the FG/HIB segments form. Discuss the Agency Revenue Service Start Date for any
segments added in the 2017 report year with the persons reporting NTD data. This is the
commencement date of revenue service for each FG/HIB segment. Determine that the date reported
is the date that the agency began revenue service. This may be later than the Original Date of
Revenue Service if the transit agency is not the original operator. If a segment was added for the
2017 report year, the Agency Revenue Service Date must occur within the transit agency’s 2017
fiscal year. Segments are grouped by like characteristics. Note that for apportionment purposes,
under the State of Good Repair (§5337) and Bus and Bus Facilities (§5339) programs, the 7-year age
requirement for fixed guideway/High Intensity Bus segments is based on the report year when the
segment is first reported by any NTD transit agency. This pertains to segments reported for the first
time in the current report year. Even if a transit agency can document an Agency Revenue Service
Start Date prior to the current NTD report year, the FTA will only consider segments continuously
reported to the NTD.

Per inquiry of management, no new FG segments were added in fiscal year 2017.
Compare operating expenses with audited financial data after reconciling items are removed.
Step performed without exception.

If the transit agency purchases transportation (PT) services, interview the personnel reporting the
NTD data on the amount of PT-generated fare revenues. The PT fare revenues should equal the
amount reported on the Contractual Relationship form (B-30).

We agreed the fare revenue for the vanpool and motor bus PT without exception.

If the transit agency's report contains data for PT services and assurances of the data for those
services is not included, obtain a copy of the Independent Auditor Statement for Federal Funding
Allocation (IAS-FFA) data of the PT service. Attach a copy of the statement to the report. Note as an
exception if the transit agency does not have an Independent Auditor Statement for the PT data.

We inquired to management and noted that the report does include PT from private operators,
but that an Independent Auditor Statement is not required since the Authority is a public
transportation provider and the PT expenditures are included on the B-30 form of the NTD.

If the transit agency purchases transportation services, obtain a copy of the PT contract and
determine that the contract specifies the public transportation services to be provided; the monetary
consideration obligated by the transit agency or governmental unit contracting for the service; the
period covered by the contract (and that this period overlaps the entire, or a portion of, the period
covered by the transit agency’s NTD report); and is signed by representatives of both parties to the
contract. Interview the person responsible for retention of the executed contract, and determine that
copies of the contracts are retained for three years.

We obtained a copy of the PT contract for each provider and noted that the contract included
a description of the services to be provided, the monetary consideration obligated by the
Authority for the service and the period covered by the contract and that this period is the
same as, or a portion of, the period covered by the Authority’s NTD report; and is signed by
representatives of both parties to the contract. Management stated that copies of the
executed contracts are retained for the last three years, as applicable.
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If the transit agency provides service in more than one UZA, or between an UZA and a non-UZA,
inquire of the procedures for allocation of statistics between UZAs and non-UZAs. Obtain and review
the FG segment worksheets, route maps, and urbanized area boundaries used for allocating the
statistics, and determine that the stated procedure is followed and that the computations are correct.

Per management, the Authority provides most of their services in one UZA and therefore it is
all allocated to that one UZA. Additionally, all of the services provided are in urbanized areas
and allocations to non-urbanized areas are not required, therefore the procedure is not
applicable.

Compare the data reported on the Federal Funding Allocation Statistics Form to data from the prior
report year and calculate the percentage change from the prior year to the current year. For actual
VRM, PMT or OE data that have increased or decreased by more than 10%, or FG DRM data that
have increased or decreased. Interview transit agency management regarding the specifics of
operations that led to the increases or decreases in the data relative to the prior reporting period.

We compared and agreed the data reported on the Federal Funding Allocation Statistics form
(Form FFA-10) to comparable data for the prior report year and calculated the percentage
change from the prior year to the current year. For any current year data that increased or
decreased by more than 10%, we inquired to the Authority and documented the explanations
for the variances.

The auditor should document the specific procedures followed, documents reviewed, and tests
performed in the work papers. The work papers should be available for FTA review for a minimum of
three years following the NTD report year. The auditor may perform additional procedures, which are
agreed to by the auditor and the transit agency, if desired. The auditor should clearly identify the
additional procedures performed in a separate attachment to the statement as procedures that were
agreed to by the transit agency and the auditor but not by the FTA.

Step performed without exception.
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Crowe HorWathu Crowe Horwath LLP

Independent Member Crowe Horwath International

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Crenshaw Project Corporation
Los Angeles, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Crenshaw Project Corporation (CPC), a
component unit of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority, as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2017 and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
CPC'’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the CPC, as of June 30, 2017, and the changes in its financial position and its cash flows thereof
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.



Other Matter
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis on pages 5 and 6 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by Governmental Accounting
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods
of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses
to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide
any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 4, 2017
on our consideration of the CPC'’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the CPC’s internal control over financial reporting and

| Crowe [P U LLP

Crowe Horwath LLP

Los Angeles, California
October 4, 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors
Crenshaw Project Corporation
Los Angeles, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type
activities of the Crenshaw Project Corporation (CPC) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the CPC’s basic financial statements,
and have issued our report thereon dated October 4, 2017.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the CPC's internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the CPC’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the CPC’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the CPC's financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

C/W'WC— l LDVW(J'-’ LLP

Crowe Horwath LLP
Los Angeles, California
October 4, 2017



Crenshaw Project Corporation
(A Component Unit of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

As management of the Crenshaw Project Corporation (CPC), we offer readers of our financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the CPC for the
fiscal year ended June 30,2017. This discussion and analysis is designed to assist the readers
in focusing on the significant financial issues and activities of the CPC.

We encourage the readers to consider the information presented herein in conjunction with
the financial statements beginning on page 7. The financial statements, the notes to the
financial statements, and this discussion and analysis were prepared by management and
are the responsibility of management.

All amounts are expressed in thousands of dollars unless otherwise indicated.
Background

The Crenshaw Project Corporation (CPC) was formed on March 23, 2012, for the sole
purpose of participating in financing public transportation projects of the Los Angeles
County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (LACMTA).

The CPC currently serves as the conduit borrower as part of a financing agreement with the
United States Department of Transportation (USDOT) under its Transportation
Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (TIFIA) program to partially finance the
construction of LACMTA’s Crenshaw/LAX Transit Corridor Project (Project).

Financial Highlights

e In September, 2012, the CPC secured a $545,900 TIFIA loan from the USDOT to partially
finance the Project. The loan under the TIFIA program is secured by Measure R sales tax
revenues allocated to the Project. As of June 30, 2017, the CPC has drawn down the full
amount of TIFIA loan proceeds.

e Total assets of $566,769 represent advances to LACMTA and total liabilities of $566,769
consist of the principal amount of $545,900 and interest accretion of $20,869 on the
TIFIA loan. Therefore, there is no net position as of June 30, 2017.

e Total expenses of $21 consisted mostly of loan fees and other administration charges,
which were reimbursed by LACMTA.

e In fiscal year 2017, total drawdowns from TIFIA loan amounted to $65,835. As of June
30, 2017, $1.4 billion has been expended on the Project, which is recorded in LACMTA'’s
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) under the Capital Assets section of the
Statement of Net Position of the Enterprise fund.



Crenshaw Project Corporation
(A Component Unit of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis serves as an introduction to the CPC’s basic
financial statements. The CPC’s basic financial statements are: 1) the Statement of Net
Position, 2) the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position, 3) the
Statement of Cash Flows, and 4) the Notes to the Financial Statements.

The CPC’s basic financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles as promulgated by the
Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The CPC is structured as an enterprise
fund. Revenues are recognized when they are earned and expenses are recognized when
they are incurred. See the Notes to the Financial Statements for the summary of the CPC’s
significant accounting policies.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the CPC’s assets and liabilities,
with the difference between the two reported as net position. The Statement of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position presents the results of the CPC’s operations.
The Statement of Cash Flows presents the cash flows generated by the CPC to meet its
current maturing obligations. The Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional
information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the basic
financial statements.

Presented below are the condensed Statement of Net Position and the condensed Statement of
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position as of and for the year ended June 30,
2017.

Condensed Statement of Net Position

Non-current assets $ 566,769
Total assets 566,769
Non-current liabilities 566,769
Total liabilities 566,769
Net position $ -

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position
Revenues $ 21
Expenses 21

Net income (loss) -

Changes in net position -

Net position - beginning of year -

Net position - end of year $ -




Crenshaw Project Corporation

(A Component Unit of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)

Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2017
(Amounts expressed in thousands)

Assets

Non-current assets
Advances to LACMTA

566,769

Total assets

566,769

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Notes payable

566,769

Total liabilities

566,769

Net position

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



Crenshaw Project Corporation
(A Component Unit of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017
(Amounts expressed in thousands)

Operating revenues
Charges for services $

Operating expenses
Professional and technical services

21

21

Change in net position

Net position - beginning of year

Net position - end of year $

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



Crenshaw Project Corporation
(A Component Unit of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017
(Amounts expressed in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from LACMTA $

21

Payments to vendors
Net cash flows from operating activities

(21)

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities
Proceeds from TIFIA loan
Advances to LACMTA

65,835
(65,835)

Net cash flows from non-capital financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year $

Non-cash financing activity:
Interest accretion on notes payable $

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

13,234



Crenshaw Project Corporation
(A Component Unit of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

The notes to the financial statements are a summary of significant accounting policies and
other disclosures considered necessary for a clear understanding of the accompanying basic
financial statements.

Unless otherwise stated, all dollar amounts are expressed in thousands.

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Reporting Entity

The Crenshaw Project Corporation (CPC) was formed for the specific purpose of securing a
loan from United States Department of Transportation (USDOT) under the Transportation
Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (TIFIA) program for the construction of
LACMTA'’s Crenshaw/LAX Transit Corridor Project (Project). The Project has an approved
life-of-project (LOP) budget of $2.05 billion that covers the design and construction of a new
8.5-mile double-track Light Rail Transit (LRT) line, including eight transit stations,
procurement of a minimum of 20 light rail vehicles, and the construction of a full service
maintenance facility known as the “Southwestern Yard.” The Project will extend from the
EXPO Line (at the intersection of Exposition and Crenshaw Boulevards) and the Metro Green
Line near the existing Aviation/LAX Station.

The CPC is governed by a Board of Directors (CPC Board) consisting of the same members of
the Board of Directors of LACMTA (Metro Board). The Chair, First-Chair and Second-Chair of
the Metro Board shall have the corresponding positions on the CPC Board. The Board
members may serve only as long as they are members of the Metro Board. Each Director
shall serve a term commensurate with his or her term on the Metro Board. The CPC is a
component unit of LACMTA because it is financially dependent upon LACMTA, and
LACMTA’s approval is needed for the CPC to expend its budgets or charges and issue long-
term debt. Although the CPC is a legally separate entity, it is in-substance part of LACMTA's
operations, and therefore the data from the CPC is included in LACMTA’s financial data.
These financial statements present only the CPC and do not purport to, and do not, present
fairly the financial position of LACMTA, as of June 30, 2017, or the changes in the financial
position for the year then ended.

Fund Accounting

The proprietary fund type is used to account for ongoing operations and activities similar to
those found in the private sector, where the determination of net income is necessary or
useful for sound financial administration. The CPC uses the proprietary fund type to account
for the goods and services provided to LACMTA on a cost-reimbursement basis. Proprietary
funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues include reimbursements from LACMTA for operating expenses. Operating

10



Crenshaw Project Corporation
(A Component Unit of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

expenses include professional services and administrative expenses. The CPC applies all
applicable Government Accounting Standard Board (GASB) pronouncements in accounting
and reporting for its proprietary operations. Revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded when incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, all highly liquid investments, including
restricted assets, with an original maturity date of 90 days or less, are considered to be cash
and cash equivalents. Otherwise, they are considered to be investments.

Receivables and Payables

Interagency’ receivables/payables are amounts owed to/due from other LACMTA funds for
services performed. Payables are amounts due to vendors for goods or services received.

Note 2 - Advances to LACMTA

Advances to LACMTA consist of cash advances to partially finance the construction of the
Project. As of June 30, 2017, the outstanding balance of advances to LACMTA totaled
$566,769.

Note 3 - Notes Payable

In September 2012, the CPC secured a loan not to exceed $545,900 from the USDOT under
the TIFIA program to partially finance the construction of the Project. The loan, secured by a
portion of LACMTA'’s Measure R sales tax revenues allocated to the Project, bears interest at
2.43% per annum on the outstanding balance with maturity date of June 1, 2034. On each
June 1 and December 1, interest accrued in the six-month period ending on such date is
capitalized and added to the outstanding balance of the TIFIA loan. The principal amount is
payable in annual installments on June 1 of each year commencing on June 1, 2021, while the
interest payments are payable semi-annually on June 1 and December 1 of each year
commencing on December 1, 2020. As of June 30, 2017, the outstanding balance of the TIFIA
loan was $566,769.

11



Crenshaw Project Corporation
(A Component Unit of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

The CPC’s annual debt service requirements (including interest accretion) are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30 Principal Interest Total
2018 $ (13,914) $ 13914 $ -
2019 (14,196) 14,196 -
2020 (13,328) 13,328 -
2021 (59) 14,759 14,700
2022 8,619 14,781 23,400
2023-2027 107,487 69,813 177,300
2028-2032 312,329 45,270 357,599
2033-2034 179,831 6,449 186,280

$ 566,769 $ 192,510 $ 759,279

The annual debt service requirements were calculated based on allocation of loan
payments from the principal amount of $545,900.

12
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Crowe Horwath& Crowe Horwath LLP

Independent Member Crowe Horwath International

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Board of Directors
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority
Los Angeles, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Service Authority for Freeway Emergencies
(SAFE), a component unit of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (LACMTA), as
of and for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprises SAFE’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of SAFE as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, and the changes in financial position thereof for the years
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information as listed in the table of contents, be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing
the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 1,
2017 on our consideration of SAFE’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the SAFE’s internal control over financial reporting and

compliance.
CJ’WWC— ”DVWM’L LLP

Crowe Horwath LLP

Los Angeles, California
December 1, 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Board of Directors
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority
Los Angeles, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities of the Service Authority for Freeway Emergencies (SAFE), a component unit of the Los Angeles
County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (LACMTA), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise SAFE’s basic financial statements,
and have issued our report thereon dated December 1, 2017.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered SAFE's internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of SAFE’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of SAFE’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether SAFE's financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Crowe e b LLP

Crowe Horwath LLP

Los Angeles, California
December 1, 2017



SERVICE AUTHORITY FOR FREEWAY EMERGENCIES
(A Component Unit of the
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
Fiscal years ended June 30,2017 and 2016

The management’s discussion and analysis of the financial performance of the Service Authority for Freeway
Emergencies (SAFE) presents an overview of SAFE’s financial activities during the fiscal years ended
June 30, 2017 and 2016. Management encourages readers to consider information presented here in
conjunction with the financial statements (beginning on page 8). The basic financial statements, the notes to the
basic financial statements, and this discussion and analysis were prepared by management and are the
responsibility of management.

All dollar amounts are expressed in thousands unless otherwise indicated.

Financial Highlights

. SAFE’s net position decreased by $3,580 or 15.95% compared to fiscal year 2016 mainly due to higher
expenditures incurred for the operation of the call box system and the continued development of
the Southern California 511. The favorable variance of $771 in actual receipts of vehicle registration
fees over budgeted amount was mainly due to an increase in vehicle registrations by the California
Department of Motor Vehicles from the previous year. The favorable variance of $1,940 in
administration and other expenditures under budgeted amount was mainly due to lower operating
subsidy to LACMTA for its freeway service project.

. Revenues are comprised of vehicle registration fees and investment earnings. Investments earnings
in fiscal year 2017 decreased by $283 or 66.75% compared to fiscal year 2016 mainly due to lower
cash balance available for participation in the LACMTA pooled investments.

° Expenditures increased by $1,395 or 13.16% compared to fiscal year 2016. The increase in expenditures
was mainly due to higher expenditures incurred for professional and technical services and advertising
for the operation of the call box system and the Southern California 511.

Overview of Financial Statements

This management’s discussion and analysis serves as an introduction to SAFE’s basic financial statements.
SAFE’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components: (1) the government-wide financial
statements; (2) the fund financial statements, and (3) the notes to the basic financial statements. This report
also contains required supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements.

Government-wide financial statements provide a broad overview of SAFE’s finances in a manner similar to
private sector entities. The government-wide financial statements consist of: (1) the statements of net position,
which present information on all of SAFE’s assets and liabilities with the difference being reported as net
position, and (2) the statements of activities, which depict the changes in net position during the year. Trends
of increasing or decreasing net position may serve as a useful indicator of financial health.

Fund financial statements represent the near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources.
The fund financial statements consist of: (1) the balance sheets, which present SAFE’s assets and
liabilities, with the difference being reported as fund balance; and (2) the statements of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balance. This report presents the underlying events or activities of
the fund that affected the balance sheets.

The notes to the basic financial statements are various disclosures that accompany the government-wide
and fund financial statements in order to provide a full understanding of SAFE'’s finances.
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SERVICE AUTHORITY FOR FREEWAY EMERGENCIES
(A Component Unit of the
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
Fiscal years ended June 30,2017 and 2016

Analytical Overview

The table below shows the condensed schedule of net position as of June 30, 2017, 2016, and 2015:

Governmental Activities
Schedule of Net Position

2017 2016 2015
Total assets $ 19,764 $ 23,387 $ 25,678
Total liabilities 890 933 1,119
Total net position $ 18,874 $ 22,454 $ 24,559

Total assets decreased by $3,623 or 15.49% in fiscal year 2017 and by $2,291 or 8.92% in fiscal year 2016.
This was due mainly to increases in expenditures incurred for its congestion relief operations and other
programs.

Total liabilities decreased by $43 or 4.61% in fiscal year 2017 and by $186 or 16.62% in fiscal year 2016
mainly due to lower accrued liabilities in program expenses.

The following table is a condensed schedule of activities for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2017, 2016, and
2015:

Governmental Activities
Summary Schedule of Activities

2017 2016 2015

Program expenses, net of revenues:
Congestion relief operations $ 10,492 $ 8,310 $ 8,205
Subsidies to LACMTA 1,500 2,287 4,956
Total program expenses 11,992 10,597 13,161

General revenues:

License fees 8,271 8,068 7,834
Investment income 141 424 163
Total general revenues 8,412 8,492 7,997
Change in net position $ (3,580) $ (2,105) $ (5,164)




SERVICE AUTHORITY FOR FREEWAY EMERGENCIES
(A Component Unit of the
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
Fiscal years ended June 30,2017 and 2016

Factors Impacting Future Periods

SAFE anticipates continuing the operation and management of the call box system (fixed and mobile) and
Southern California 511. SAFE completed an additional phase of the fixed call box system restructuring as
well as the transition from 2G to 3G wireless capabilities during FY17. The cost to continue operating the
fixed call box system will decrease in FY18 with further reviews to be conducted for its continued operation.
The use of the mobile call box service is projected to increase slightly but the costs should be relatively stable
as the new contract for call answering services was recently awarded. The operational costs associated with
Southern California 511 will also decrease in FY18 due to the transition to a new system. The SoCal 511
operational costs are projected to remain relatively stable with any increases occurring as a result of new
service/functionality development and implementation. Finally, there may be a reduction to the annual
allocation in support of Metro Freeway Service Patrol due to the potential of obtaining additional new funds
from the State. SAFE will monitor this situation and will reduce its annual allocation as warranted after
discussions with LACMTA. Overall, it is anticipated that in the near term, the future costs will be relatively
stable.

Further Information

This report has been designed to provide all interested parties with a general overview of SAFE'’s financial
condition and related issues. Inquiries should be directed to the Accounting Department, One Gateway Plaza,
Mail Stop 99-20-7, Los Angeles, CA90012-2952.



SERVICE AUTHORITY FOR FREEWAY EMERGENCIES
(A Component Unit of the
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Statements of Net Position
Fiscal years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(Amounts expressed in thousands)

Governmental Activities

2017 2016
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 8,029 $ 9,221
Investments 11,643 13,286
Intergovernmental receivable — 791
Interest receivable 92 89
Total assets 19,764 23,387
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 890 933
Net position:
Restricted 18,874 22,454
Total net position $ 18,874 $ 22,454

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.



SERVICE AUTHORITY FOR FREEWAY EMERGENCIES
(A Component Unit of the
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Statements of Activities

Fiscal years ended June 30,2017 and 2016
(Amounts expressed in thousands)

Program expenses, net of revenues:
Transit operations:
Congestion relief operations
Subsidies to LACMTA
Total program expenses

General revenues:
License fees
Investment income
Total general revenues
Change in net position
Net position - beginning of year
Net position - end of year

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

Governmental Activities
2017 2016
$ 10,492 8,310
1,500 2,287
11,992 10,597
8,271 8,068
141 424
8,412 8,492
(3,580) (2,105)
22,454 24,559
$ 18,874 22,454




SERVICE AUTHORITY FOR FREEWAY EMERGENCIES
(A Component Unit of the
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority
Balance Sheets
Fiscal years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

(Amounts expressed in thousands)

Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Intergovernmental receivable
Interest receivable

Total assets

Liabilities:
Accounts payable

Fund balance:

Restricted
Total liabilities and fund balance

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Special Revenue Fund
2017 2016

8,029 9,221
11,643 13,286
— 791
92 89
19,764 23,387
890 933
18,874 22,454
19,764 23,387




SERVICE AUTHORITY FOR FREEWAY EMERGENCIES
(A Component Unit of the
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Fiscal years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(Amounts expressed in thousands)

Revenues:
License fees
Investment income

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Administration and other transportation projects
Subsidies to LACMTA

Total expenditures
Net change in fund balance

Fund balance - beginning of year
Fund balance - end of year

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Special Revenue Fund

2017 2016
8271 $ 8,068
141 424
8,412 8,492
10,492 8,310
1,500 2,287
11,992 10,597
(3,580) (2,105)
22,454 24,559
18,874 $ 22,454




SERVICE AUTHORITY FOR FREEWAY EMERGENCIES
(A Component Unit of the
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30,2017 and 2016

The notes to the basic financial statements are a summary of significant accounting policies and other
disclosures considered necessary for a clear understanding of the accompanying basic financial statements.

Unless otherwise indicated, all dollar amounts are expressed in thousands.

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Reporting Entity

The Service Authority for Freeway Emergencies (SAFE) was created in February 1988 pursuant
to California Streets and Highway Code Section 2550 et. seq., and is responsible for the
operation, maintenance, and administration of the Los Angeles County Kenneth Hahn Call Box
system. Under the authority of the above section, the Los Angeles County Metropolitan
Transportation Authority (LACMTA) is the designated SAFE for Los Angeles County.

As LACMTA'’s board is SAFE’s board, SAFE is a component unit of LACMTA and is included in
LACMTA'’s financial statements as a blended component unit.

(b) Operations

SAFE is responsible for the implementation, maintenance, operation, and administration of
motorist aid on the network of freeways, highways, and unincorporated county roads within Los
Angeles County. SAFE operates and maintains approximately 2,700 call boxes along 436 miles
of freeways, state highways, and selected county roads in Los Angeles County. SAFE also funds,
operates and manages the Southern California 511 traveler information system. This system
provides real-time and planned traffic, transit and other related traveler information to the
public via the phone, web and mobile application.

(c) Government-wide Financial Statements

SAFE’s financial statements, prepared in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements and Management’s Discussion and
Analysis for State and Local Governments, consist of government-wide statements, including a
statement of net position, statement of activities, and fund financial statements, which provide a
more detailed level of financial information.

The government-wide financial statements report information on all of the non-fiduciary
activities of SAFE and are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses, including
centralized expenses of a given function or segment, are offset by program revenues. Direct
expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Licenses and
fines and investment earnings not considered program revenues are reported as general
revenues.
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SERVICE AUTHORITY FOR FREEWAY EMERGENCIES
(A Component Unit of the
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30,2017 and 2016

(d)

(e)

1))

9)

Fund Accounting

SAFE utilizes fund accounting to report its financial position and the results of its operations.
Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management
by segregating transactions related to certain governmental functions or activities. A fund is a
separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. Funds are classified into three
categories: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary.

Governmental funds are used to account for SAFE'’s activities. The governmental fund financial
statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Additionally, the SAFE fund is considered a special revenue
governmental fund. Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenue sources that
are legally restricted for specific purposes. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible
within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For
this purpose, SAFE considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 90 days of the
end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred
and a valid claim is presented.

Fund Balance and Net Position

Restricted fund balance and net position include amounts that can be spent only for specific
purposes stipulated by enabling legislation, by grants, creditors, or by regulations of other
governments. SAFE’s fund balance and net position are classified as restricted as they can only be
used in accordance with the provisions of the California Streets and Highway Code Section 2550
et. seq. by which the fund was created.

Budgetary Accounting

Enabling legislation and adopted policies and procedures provide that the SAFE Board of
Directors approve an annual budget. The Board of Directors conducts a public hearing for
discussion of the proposed annual budget prior to adoption of the final budget. Unexpended
appropriations lapse at year-end. The legal level of control is at the fund level, and expenses may
not exceed total appropriations without board approval. By policy, the board has provided
procedures for management to make revisions within operational or project budgets when there
is no net dollar impact to total appropriations. The budget is prepared on a generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) basis.

Cash and Investments

SAFE maintains a minimum balance with the Los Angeles County Treasurer’s external
investment pool. Balances in excess of $50 are withdrawn and deposited into the LACMTA
internal investment pool.
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SERVICE AUTHORITY FOR FREEWAY EMERGENCIES
(A Component Unit of the
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30,2017 and 2016

(h) Receivables

Receivables are net of estimated allowances for uncollectible accounts which are determined
based on past experience. Receivables include license and fine revenue due from the State
Department of Motor Vehicles. As of June 30, 2016, SAFE had a receivable for license fees of $791.
No receivable was necessary as of June 30, 2017.

(i) Vehicle Registration Fees

Vehicle registration fees revenue is recognized when earned and is generated by a $1 (amount not in
thousands) per each car registered in Los Angeles County, which is collected by the State
Department of Motor Vehicles.

(j) Effects of New GASB Pronouncements

There were no new GASB Pronouncements applicable to SAFE for the year ended June 30, 2017.

(2) Cash and Investments

The following is a breakdown of SAFE’s cash and investments as of June 30,2017 and 2016.

2017 2016
LACMTA investment pool $ 18953 $ 21,834
LA County investment pool 719 673

$ 19,672 $ 22,507

SAFE’s cash balances are pooled with other LACMTA funds. The LACMTA Board of Directors provides
regulatory oversight for the LACMTA pool. Each fund maintains an equity interest in the pool and is
presented as cash and investments in the Statement of Net Position. The value of the position in the
investment pool is the same as the value of the pool. The investment pool is not rated for purposes of
evaluating credit risk as of June 30, 2017 and 2016. Detailed information regarding the LACMTA's
pooled cash and investments can be found in the LACMTA Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR). A copy of the LACMTA’s CAFR can be obtained by submitting a written request to the
Accounting Department, One Gateway Plaza, Los Angeles, CA 90012-2952.

SAFE’s cash balances are also pooled with other County funds and invested by the Los Angeles County
Treasurer. These funds are subject to withdrawal from the Treasurer’s pool upon demand. The
County Board of Supervisors provides regulatory oversight for the Los Angeles County Investment
Pool (LACIP). The value of the position in the investment pool is the same as the value of the pool. The
investment pool is not rated for purposes of evaluating credit risk as of June 30, 2017 and 2016.
Detailed information regarding the County’s pooled cash and investments can be found in the County
of Los Angeles Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). A copy of the County’s CAFR can be
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SERVICE AUTHORITY FOR FREEWAY EMERGENCIES
(A Component Unit of the
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority)
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30,2017 and 2016

obtained by submitting a written request to the Los Angeles County Auditor-Controller, 500 West
Temple Street, Room 525, Los Angeles, CA 90012-2766.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and Risk Disclosure - an Amendment of GASB
Statement No. 3, certain required disclosures regarding investment policies and practices with respect
to the risk associated with their concentration of credit risk, custodial credit risk, interest rate risk, and
foreign currency risk are discussed in the following paragraphs:

(a) Concentration of Credit Risk
Concentration of credit risk is the risk associated with a lack of diversification or having too much
invested in a few individual shares. SAFE maintains investment policies that establish thresholds for
holdings of individual securities. SAFE does not have any holdings meeting or exceeding these
threshold levels. As of June 30, 2017, SAFE does not have any investments with more than 5% of the
total investments under one issuer.

(b) Custodial Credit Risk

SAFE has no known custodial credit risk for deposits as financial institutions are required by the
California Government Code to collateralize deposits of public funds by pledging government
securities as collateral. Such collateralization of public funds is accomplished by pooling.

(c) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rate will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. SAFE measures interest rate risk on its short-term investments using the effective
duration method. SAFE maintains a policy requiring the average duration of the externally managed
short-term investments not to exceed 150% of the benchmark duration and the average duration
of the internally managed short-term investments not to exceed three years.

(d) Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the fair values
of the cash deposits or investments. As of June 30, 2017 and 2016, there was no exposure to foreign
currency risk as all SAFE cash deposits and investments are denominated in U.S. dollar currency.

(3) Significant Commitments

SAFE has entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the Public Transportation
Services Corporation (PTSC), a blended component unit of LACMTA, for PTSC to provide cost
reimbursable administrative support services to SAFE. The MOU will remain in effect until terminated
by either party with a minimum of sixty (60) days written notice.

SAFE had $603 and $774 of outstanding contractual commitments as of June 30, 2017 and 2016,
respectively that had not been claimed or disbursed.
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SERVICE AUTHORITY FOR FREEWAY EMERGENCIES
(A Component Unit of the
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Unaudited)
Fiscal years ended June 30,2017 and 2016
(Amounts expressed in thousands)

2017 2016
Variance Variance
with with
Original Final Final Original Final Final
Budget” Budget” Actual Budget Budget® Budget * Actual Budget
Revenues:
Licenses and fines $ 7,500 $ 7,500 $ 8271 $ 771 $ 7,500 $ 7,500 $ 8,068 $ 568
Investment income 75 75 141 66 100 100 424 324
Total revenues 7,575 7,575 8,412 837 7,600 7,600 8,492 892
Expenditures:
Administration and other
transportation projects 12,932 12,932 10,492 2,440 10,328 10,328 8,310 2,018
Subsidies to LACMTA 1,000 1,000 1,500 (500) 2,000 2,000 2,287 (287)
Total expenditures 13,932 13,932 11,992 1,940 12,328 12,328 10,597 1,731
Net change in fund balance (6,357) (6,357) (3,580) 2,777 (4,728) (4,728) (2,105) 2,623
Fund balance - beginning of year 22,454 22,454 22,454 — 24,559 24,559 24,559 —
Fund balance - end of year $16,097 $16,097 $18,874 $ 2,777 $ 19,831 $19,831 $ 22,454 $ 2,623

*Budget prepared in accordance with GAAP

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors

Los Angeles County Metropolitan
Transportation Authority

Los Angeles, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (LACMTA) as of and for the year ended June
30, 2015, and the related notes to the basic financial statements, which collectively comprise LACMTA'’s
basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 22, 2015. Our report
includes a reference to other auditors who audited the financial statements of the defined benefit pension
plan financial statements of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority Retirement
Income Plans, as described in our report on LACMTA'’s financial statements. The defined benefit pension
plan financial statements of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority Retirement
Income Plans were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered LACMTA's internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of LACMTA’s internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of LACMTA'’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may
exist that were not identified. However, as described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and
Questioned Costs, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses and significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the
deficiency described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as Finding 2015-
002 to be a material weakness.

(Continued)



A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We
consider the deficiency described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as
Finding 2015-001 to be a significant deficiency.

Other Matter

This report is being reissued to include Finding 2015-002 related to a federal program being initially
excluded from the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards. It was originally presented as
Local Share expenditures on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards, but should have
been presented as federal expenditures.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether LACMTA’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Response to Findings

LACMTA's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying Schedule of
Findings and Questioned Costs. LACMTA’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

C/M]w-c H—w..mu LL.P

Crowe Horwath LLP
Sherman Oaks, California
December 22, 2015, except for finding 2015-002, which
the date is March 29, 2018




Crowe Horwath LLP

Independent Member Crowe Horwath International

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM;
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT ON THE SCHEDULE OF
EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Board of Directors

Los Angeles County Metropolitan
Transportation Authority

Los Angeles, California

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority’s (LACMTA) compliance with
the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that
could have a direct and material effect on each of LACMTA’s major federal programs for the year ended
June 30, 2015. LACMTA'’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section
of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of LACMTA’s major federal programs
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about LACMTA’s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of LACMTA’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, LACMTA complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements

referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the
year ended June 30, 2015.




Other Matter

This report is replacing a previously issued report. Management identified that the Transportation
Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (TIFIA) loan program (CFDA # 20.223) amount of approximately
$37.5 million was initially included as Local Share expenditures, rather than as federal expenditures, on the
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards. In addition, this report includes this federal
program tested as a major program.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of LACMTA is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our
audit of compliance, we considered LACMTA’s internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
LACMTA's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, nhoncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may
exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular
A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of LACMTA as of and for the year ended June
30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise LACMTA's basic
financial statements. We issued our report thereon dated December 22, 2015, which contained unmodified
opinions on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on
the financial statements that collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The accompanying
schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in




the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditure of federal and state awards is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 8 to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards, management
identified that the Transportation Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (TIFIA) loan program (Catalog
of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 20.223) amount of approximately $37.5 million was initially
included as Local Share expenditures in the Schedule rather than as federal expenditures. Our report is
not modified with respect to this matter.

C/m‘w-c_ H’er-’ﬂm LLP

Crowe Horwath LLP

Sherman Oaks, California

March 3, 2016, except for major program CFDA # 20.223 (TIFIA Program), and our report on the
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards, including Note 4 and Note 8, for which the date is
March 29, 2018
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LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
Year ended June 30, 2015

NOTE 1 - GENERAL

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards (the Schedule) presents the grant
activity of all expenditures of federal and state award programs of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan
Transportation Authority (LACMTA). All federal awards received directly from federal agencies, as well as
federal awards passed through other government agencies, are included in the Schedule. The Schedule
also includes state grants that do not participate in the federal awards. LACMTA is the reporting entity as
defined in Note 1 to the financial statements of LACMTA'’s basic financial statements.

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The Schedule includes the federal grant activity of LACMTA and is presented on the accrual basis of
accounting. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of U.S.
Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-
Profit Organizations.

NOTE 3 - SUBRECIPIENTS

Of the federal expenditures presented in the Schedule, LACMTA provided federal awards to subrecipients
as follows:

CFDA
Program Title Number Amount
Highway Planning and Construction Program 20.205 $ 319,659
Federal Transit Capital Improvement Grants 20.500 13,870,240
Federal Transit Formula Grants 20.507 5,629,753
Job Access and Reverse Commute 20.516 3,050,334
New Freedom Program 20.521 1,369,597

$ 24239583
NOTE 4 — STATE AND LOCAL FUNDS REIMBURSEMENT

LACMTA utilizes state and local funds when federal funds are not received in a timely manner. Upon receipt
of federal funds, LACMTA reimburses state and local funds that were utilized for expenditures for federal
programs. Reimbursements are shown as credit balances in the Schedule. Expenditures incurred during
the current fiscal year, but before a federal grant is executed are included as state or local on the Schedule
in the year the expenditures are incurred and are reported as federal on the Schedule in the year the grant
was executed. The Schedule includes all federal and state grant and loan expenditures, however, the
Schedule only includes local expenditures as they relate to the federal and state funded projects. For CFDA
20.233, $37,477,492 included in the Schedule represents current year loan proceeds for expenditures that
were originally incurred in prior years.

NOTE 5 — FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

Pursuant to the Single Audit Act and the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement, the federal financial
assistance is defined as assistance provided by a federal agency, either directly or indirectly, in the form of
grants, contracts, cooperative agreements, loans, loan guarantees, property, interest subsidies, insurance,
or direct appropriations. Accordingly, nonmonetary federal assistance is included in federal financial
assistance and, therefore, is reported on the Schedule, if applicable. Federal financial assistance does not
include direct federal cash assistance to individuals. Solicited contracts between the state and federal
government for which the federal government procures tangible goods or services are not considered to be
federal financial assistance.




LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
Year ended June 30, 2015

NOTE 6 — MAJOR PROGRAMS

The Single Audit Act and OMB Circular A-133 establish criteria to be used in defining major federal financial
assistance programs. Major programs for LACMTA are those programs selected for testing by the auditor
using a risk assessment model, as well as certain minimum expenditure requirements, as outlined in OMB
Circular A-133. Programs with similar requirements may be grouped into a cluster for testing purposes.

NOTE 7 — COMMINGLED ASSISTANCE

The LACMTA receives federal and state funding as a subrecipient through the State of California’s
Department of Transportation (Caltrans). The expenditures reported in the accompanying Schedule for
CFDA 20.205, U.S. Department of Transportation — Highway Planning and Construction (grant #07-4826),
represent commingled federal and state funding received from Caltrans. The sources of funding passed
through Caltrans include state funding from the Traffic Congestion Relief Program (TCRP) and the State
Transportation Program — Local (STPL) and Federal funding from the Federal Regional Surface
Transportation Program (RSTP) and the Safe, Accountable, Flexible, Efficient Transportation Equity Act: a
Legacy for Users (SAFETEA — LU). The program also includes Local Proposition C-25% funding provided
by LACMTA. When the sources of funding from Caltrans are not separately identifiable, LACMTA'’s policy
is to report amounts expended under the program first as federal expenditures up to the approved budgeted
amount and then the remaining expenditures will be reported as state expenditures.

NOTE 8 — RESTATEMENT

During fiscal year 2017, management identified that the Transportation Infrastructure Finance and
Innovation Act (TIFIA) loan program (CFDA # 20.223) expenditures were not included on the Schedule for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 as federal funding, but instead were included as Local Share
expenditures. An adjustment was made to reclassify the TIFIA loan program as a federal program and
reduce the $37.5 million of expenditures from Local Share (CFDA #20.933) on the Schedule. When
corrected, the TIFIA program became a major program that required testing in fiscal year 2015.




LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year ended June 30, 2015

SECTION 1 - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS
Financial Statements:
Type of auditor’s report issued:
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiencies identified not
considered to be material weaknesses?
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?
Federal Awards:
Internal Control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiencies identified not
considered to be material weaknesses?

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for
major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with Section .510(a) of
OMB Circular A-133?

Identification of major programs:

CFDA 20.205 — Highway Panning and Construction Cluster

Unmodified
X __Yes No
X _Yes None reported
Yes X No
Yes X No
Yes X None reported
Unmodified
Yes X No

CFDA 20.223 — Transportation Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act Program

CFDA 20.500 / 20.507 / 20.525 — Federal Transit Cluster

CFDA 20.516 / 20.521 — Transit Services Cluster
CFDA 97.075 — Rail and Transit Security Program

Dollar threshold used to distinguish type A and B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

$ 3,000,000

X Yes No

(Continued)



LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year ended June 30, 2015

SECTION 2 - FINDINGS RELATING TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, WHICH ARE REQUIRED TO
BE REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GAGAS

Finding 2015-001 — OPEB Benefits and Plan Provisions (Significant Deficiency)

Condition: Management determined that certain benefit provisions were not included in the actuarial
calculation used to measure the Net OPEB Obligation liability on LACMTA’s statement of net position.
Management discovered that lifetime benefits for ATU employees were not reflected in the previous
valuations of the net OPEB obligation. With the addition of the OPEB lifetime benefit provision, the
calculation of the prior Annual Required Contributions were understated and resulted in the Net OPEB
Obligation liability being understated. This benefit plan provision did not affect any of the other LACMTA
OPEB plans.

Criteria: Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by the
Government Accounting Standards Board (Governmental GAAP) -- Under GASB 45 Accounting and
Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, for financial
reporting purposes, an actuarial valuation is required at least biennially for OPEB plans. The projection of
benefits should include all benefits covered by the current substantive plan (the plan as understood by the
employer and plan members) at the time of each valuation and should take into consideration the pattern
of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point, as well as certain legal
or contractual caps on benefits to be provided.

Effect: An adjustment was made to recognize the lifetime benefits for ATU employees that were not
reflected in the previous valuations of the net OPEB obligation. With the addition of the OPEB lifetime
benefit provision, the calculation of the prior Annual Required Contribution amounts were understated and
resulted in the Net OPEB Obligation liability being understated. A prior period adjustment of $215,000,000
was made to decrease the business-type activities’ beginning net position and increase the net OPEB
obligation by $215,000,000. The impact on change in net position for the year ended June 30, 2014 was a
reduction of $35,000,000.

Cause: As part of a transition from one actuarial firm to a new actuarial firm, management and the actuary
reviewed benefit plan provisions and identified the ATU lifetime benefit that was not included, although the
benefit had been in place for several years.

Recommendation: We recommend that LACMTA management perform a review of all OPEB plan
provisions and benefits any time a change in the plan is made.

Management Response: LACMTA management performed a detailed review of OPEB plan provisions as
part of an actuarial valuation specialist transition during 2015 to determine the existence, completeness,
and values of benefits provided. Ongoing, management will perform an annual review of plan and benefit
changes for each OPEB plan and update the actuary on changes to the plan to evaluate their impact on
benefits expense and valuation estimates.

(Continued)
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LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year ended June 30, 2015

Finding 2015-002 — Preparation of Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards (Material
Weakness)

Condition: The Transportation Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (TIFIA) Program (CFDA # 20.223)
activity was not included as federal expenditures and instead was presented in the Local Share column of
the schedule of expenditure of federal and state awards (SEFA).

Criteria: OMB Circular A-133 requires that proper internal controls are in place over the SEFA to ensure
that all federal grant expenditures and loan draws during the current fiscal year are included as federal
expenditures.

Effect: TIFIA Program expenditures of $37,477,492 were excluded from the federal column of the original
fiscal year 2015 SEFA prepared by management and instead were included in the Local Share column. As
a result of this presentation on the Schedule, the TIFIA Program was not identified and tested as a major
program during the original fiscal year 2015 audit, thus requiring a reissuance of the Single Audit Report.

Cause: The TIFIA Program had not previously had any loan draws or activity, and unlike the other federal
programs that LACMTA receives funds from which are cost reimbursement grant programs, this is a loan
program. Additionally, it appears that there was not clear communication of the OMB Circular A-133
requirements in the loan agreement, nor was there any disclosure of the CFDA number in the loan
agreement. At the time, management made the determination that the funds were Local since the
repayment of the TIFIA loans will come from local funding.

Recommendation: We recommend that management review all loan agreements and confirm, as
applicable, with the funding source the nature of funding and audit compliance requirements. As of the
March 28, 2018 reissuance report date, this matter is considered resolved.

Management's Response: As of this reissuance report date, management has reviewed loan agreements
and affirmed the nature of the funding and audit compliance requirements. Management believe the matter
is resolved.

SECTION 3 - FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS INCLUDING AUDIT
FINDINGS AS DEFINED IN OMB CIRCULAR A-133 SECTION 510(A):

None

(Continued)
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LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year ended June 30, 2015

SECTION 4 - PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Finding 2014-001 — Davis-Bacon Act — Submission of Certified Payrolls (Significant Deficiency)

Federal Program Information: U.S. Department of Transportation — Federal Transit Cluster and National
Infrastructure Investments (CFDA 20.500 and 20.933)

Condition: Management of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (LACMTA) is
required to obtain, on a weekly basis, certified payrolls and statements of compliance from each contractor
for each week in which contracted work is performed under the Davis-Bacon Act. For all major programs
cited below, we noted that management did not have adequate controls in place to ensure that certified
payrolls and compliance statements are received on a weekly basis as required by the Davis-Bacon Act
(29 CFR Sections 5.5 and 5.6).

In our sample of 40 certified payrolls and compliance statements for the Federal Transit Cluster, we noted
all of our samples were not received on a weekly basis. We noted that 27 of the exceptions were received
between 2 and 243 days past the due date. For 13 of the samples, we noted that received date stamp on
the documentation for the respective samples were either illegible or not present on the weekly certified
payroll reports. Although the certified payrolls were not received weekly, the LACMTA ultimately received
all of the required certified payrolls for the samples tested.

In our sample of 40 certified payrolls and compliance statements for the National Infrastructure Investments
program, we noted 35 of our samples were not received on a weekly basis. We noted that these exceptions
were received between 1 and 157 days past the due date. Although the certified payrolls were not received
weekly, the LACMTA ultimately received all of the required certified payrolls for the samples tested.

Status: Resolved. For the Federal Transit Cluster, we selected a sample of 60 certified payrolls from fiscal
year 2015 and did not identify any testing exceptions. The National Infrastructure Investments grant did
not have any federal expenditures in fiscal year 2015, therefore no testing or follow-up was completed.

Finding 2014-002 — Procurement, Suspension, and Debarment (Significant Deficiency)
Federal Program Information: U.S. Department of Transportation — Federal Transit Cluster, National

Infrastructure Investments, Rail and Transit Service Security Grant Program (CFDA 20.500, 20.933, and
97.075)

Condition: Management is required to document the significant history of procurements, including the
rationale for the method of procurement, selection of contract type, contractor selection or rejection, and
the basis of contract type. Management is also required to perform verification for all covered transactions
by checking the Excluded Party List System (EPLS) to ensure covered transactions are not awarded to
suspended or debarred parties. For all major programs cited below, we noted that management did not
have adequate controls in place to ensure compliance with procurement requirements.

Federal Capital Improvement Grants

In our sample of 40 contracts and purchase orders with values over $25,000 that had expenditures incurred
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, we noted 10 contract files did not have certification of non-
suspension and debarment or EPLS verification within the documentation prior to federal funds being
expended. We were, however, able to verify through the System for Award Management (SAM) that the
respective vendors were not listed on the EPLS as suspended or debarred.

(Continued)
12.



LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year ended June 30, 2015

There were also 6 contracts which were missing the following information:

e 2 contract files were missing support for the history of the procurement, including the evidence of
full and open competition. These contract files were also missing the required and Buy America
certification.

e 1 contract file was missing support for the history of the procurement, including the evidence of full
and open competition and of the cost or price analysis.

e 2 contract files were missing support for the history of the procurement, including the evidence of
full and open competition.

e 1 contract file could not be located.

The federal share of expenditures associated with the 6 contracts and purchase orders that are not in
compliance with the procurement requirements amounted to $172,073 of the $384,087,792 of total federal
program expenditures for the Federal Transit Cluster.

National Infrastructure Investments

In our sample of 3 contracts and purchase orders with values over $25,000 that had expenditures incurred
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, we noted 1 contract file did not have certification of non-
suspension and debarment or EPLS verification within the documentation prior to federal funds being
expended. We were, however, able to verify through the System for Award Management (SAM) that the
respective vendors were not listed on the EPLS as suspended or debarred.

Rail and Transit Security Grant Program
In our sample of 4 contracts and purchase orders with values over $25,000 that had expenditures incurred
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, we noted 2 contract files did not have certification of non-
suspension and debarment or EPLS verification within the documentation prior to federal funds being
expended. We were, however, able to verify through the SAM that the respective vendors were not listed
on the EPLS as suspended or debarred.

Status: Resolved. For the Federal Transit Cluster, we selected a sample of 20 contracts and purchase
orders from fiscal year 2015 and did not identify any testing exceptions with any of the procurement
requirements and all 20 contract files were available and included supporting documentation. The National
Infrastructure Investments grant did not have any federal expenditures in fiscal year 2015, therefore no
testing or follow-up was completed. For the Rail and Transit Security Grant Program, we selected a sample
of 6 contracts and purchase orders and did not identify any testing exceptions related to suspension or
debarment.

13.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority
Los Angeles, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (LACMTA) as of and for the year ended June
30, 2016, and the related notes to the basic financial statements, which collectively comprise LACMTA'’s
basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 16, 2016. Our report
includes a reference to other auditors who audited the financial statements of the defined benefit pension
plan financial statements of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority Retirement
Income Plans, as described in our report on LACMTA's financial statements. The financial statements of
the defined benefit pension plan of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority
Retirement Income Plans were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered LACMTA's internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of LACMTA's internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of LACMTA'’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may
exist that were not identified. We did identify certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as Finding 2016-001 that we consider to be a
material weakness.




Other Matter

This report is being reissued to include Finding 2016-001 related to a federal program being initially
excluded from the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards. It was originally presented as
Local Share expenditures on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards, but should have
been presented as federal expenditures.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether LACMTA'’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Response to Finding

LACMTA's response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying Schedule of
Findings and Questioned Costs. LACMTA’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Crowe Hrawenn LLP

Crowe Horwath LLP
Sherman Oaks, California
December 16, 2016, except for finding 2016-01, which
the date is March 29, 2018.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM;
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT ON THE SCHEDULE OF
EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority
Los Angeles, California

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority’s (LACMTA) compliance with
the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a
direct and material effect on each of LACMTA’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2016.
LACMTA’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions
of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of LACMTA’s major federal programs
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about LACMTA’s compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for
each major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of LACMTA’s
compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, LACMTA complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements

referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the
year ended June 30, 2016.




Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of LACMTA is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our
audit of compliance, we considered LACMTA'’s internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of LACMTA's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may
exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards Required by Uniform Guidance

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of LACMTA as of and for the year ended June
30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise LACMTA's basic
financial statements. We issued our report thereon dated December 16, 2016, which contained unmodified
opinions on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on
the financial statements that collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The accompanying
schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.




Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 7 to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards, management
identified that the Transportation Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (TIFIA) loan program (Catalog
of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 20.223) amount of approximately $467.8 million was initially
included as Local Share expenditures in the Schedule rather than as federal expenditures. Our report is
not modified with respect to this matter.

Cacive: Bransofi. LEP
Crowe Horwath LLP
Sherman Oaks, California

December 16, 2016, except for our report on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards
including note 3 and note 7, for which the date is March 29, 2018
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LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
Year ended June 30, 2016

NOTE 1 - GENERAL

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards (the Schedule) presents the grant
activity of all expenditures of federal and state award programs of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan
Transportation Authority (LACMTA) in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). All federal awards received directly from federal agencies, as well as
federal awards passed through other government agencies, are included in the Schedule. The Schedule
also includes state grants that do not participate in the federal awards. LACMTA is the reporting entity as
defined in note 1 to the financial statements of LACMTA'’s basic financial statements.

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Expenditures are
recognized following, as applicable, either the cost principles in OMB Circular A-87, Cost Principles for
State, Local, and Indian Tribal Governments or the cost principles contained in Uniform Guidance, wherein
certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Negative amounts
shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of business to amounts
reported as expenditures in prior years. LACMTA has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect
cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 3 — STATE AND LOCAL FUNDS REIMBURSEMENT

LACMTA utilizes state and local funds when federal funds are not received in a timely manner. Upon receipt
of federal funds, LACMTA reimburses state and local funds that were utilized for expenditures for federal
programs. Reimbursements are shown as credit balances in the Schedule. Expenditures incurred during
the current fiscal year, but before a federal grant is executed are included as state or local on the Schedule
in the year the expenditures are incurred and are reported as federal on the Schedule in the year the grant
was executed. The Schedule includes all federal and state grant and loan expenditures, however, the
Schedule only includes local expenditures as they relate to the federal and state funded projects.

NOTE 4 - FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

Pursuant to the Single Audit Act and Uniform Guidance Compliance Supplement, the federal financial
assistance is defined as assistance provided by a federal agency, either directly or indirectly, in the form of
grants, contracts, cooperative agreements, loans, loan guarantees, property, interest subsidies, insurance,
or direct appropriations. Accordingly, nonmonetary federal assistance is included in federal financial
assistance and, therefore, is reported on the Schedule, if applicable. Federal financial assistance does not
include direct federal cash assistance to individuals. Solicited contracts between the state and federal
government for which the federal government procures tangible goods or services are not considered to be
federal financial assistance. For CFDA 20.233, $312,220,783 in the Schedule represents current year loan
proceeds for expenditures that were originally incurred in prior years.

NOTE 5 - MAJOR PROGRAMS

The Single Audit Act and Uniform Guidance establish criteria to be used in defining major federal financial
assistance programs. Major programs for LACMTA are those programs selected for testing by the auditor
using a risk assessment model, as well as certain minimum expenditure requirements, as outlined in
Uniform Guidance. Programs with similar requirements may be grouped into a cluster for testing purposes.




LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
Year ended June 30, 2016

NOTE 6 — COMMINGLED ASSISTANCE

The LACMTA receives federal and state funding as a subrecipient through the State of California’s
Department of Transportation (Caltrans). The expenditures reported in the accompanying Schedule for
CFDA 20.205, U.S. Department of Transportation — Highway Planning and Construction (grant #07-4826),
represent commingled federal and state funding received from Caltrans. The sources of funding passed
through Caltrans include state funding from the Traffic Congestion Relief Program (TCRP) and the State
Transportation Program - Local (STPL) and Federal funding from the Federal Regional Surface
Transportation Program (RSTP) and the Safe, Accountable, Flexible, Efficient Transportation Equity Act: a
Legacy for Users (SAFETEA - LU). The program also includes Local Proposition C-25% funding provided
by LACMTA. When the sources of funding from Caltrans are not separately identifiable, LACMTA'’s policy
is to report amounts expended under the program first as federal expenditures up to the approved budgeted
amount and then the remaining expenditures will be reported as state expenditures.

NOTE 7 - RESTATEMENT

During fiscal year 2017, management identified that the Transportation Infrastructure Finance and
Innovation Act (TIFIA) loan program (CFDA # 20.223) expenditures were not included on the Schedule for
the fiscal year ending June 30, 2016 as federal funding, but instead were included as Local Share
expenditures. An adjustment was made to add the TIFIA loan program as a federal program line and
reclassify the $467.8 million of expenditures from Local Share (CFDA #20.500 Grant Number CA-03-0825
and CFDA #20.507 Grant Number CA-95-X256) to Federal on the Schedule.

10.



LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year ended June 30, 2016

SECTION 1 - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS
Financial Statements:

Type of report the auditor issued on whether

the financial statements audited were prepared

in accordance with GAAP:

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?
Federal Awards:
Internal control over major federal programs:

Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for
major federal programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?

Identification of major federal programs:

Unmodified
X __Yes No
Yes X None reported
Yes X No
Yes X No
Yes X None reported
Unmodified
Yes X No

CFDA 20.500/20.507 / 20.525 / 20.526 — Federal Transit Cluster

Dollar threshold used to distinguish type A and B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

$ 4,297,594

Yes X No

1.



LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year ended June 30, 2016

SECTION 2 - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

Finding 2016-001 — Preparation of Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Material
Weakness)

Condition: The Transportation Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (TIFIA) Program (CFDA # 20.223)
activity was not classified as federal expenditures, but instead was presented in the Local Share column
of the schedule of expenditure of federal and state awards (SEFA).

Criteria: Uniform Guidance requires that proper internal controls are in place over the SEFA to ensure that
all federal grant expenditures and loan draws during the current fiscal year are included as federal
expenditures.

Effect: TIFIA Program expenditures of $467,796,377 were excluded from the federal column of the original
fiscal year 2016 SEFA prepared by management and instead were included in the Local Share column.
Therefore, the federal expenditures were understated.

Cause: The TIFIA Program had not previously had any loan draws or activity, and unlike the other federal
programs that LACMTA receives funds from which are cost reimbursement grant programs, this is a loan
program. Additionally, it appears that there was not clear communication of the Uniform Guidance
requirements in the loan agreement, nor was there any disclosure of the CFDA number in the loan
agreement. At the time, management made the determination that the funds were Local since the
repayment of the TIFIA loans will come from local funding.

Recommendation:

We recommend that management review all loan agreements and confirm, as applicable, with the funding
source the nature of funding and audit compliance requirements. As of the March 28, 2018 reissuance
report date, this matter is considered resolved.

Management's Response : As of this reissuance report date, management has reviewed loan agreements
and affirmed the nature of the funding and audit compliance requirements. Management believes the
matter is resolved.

SECTION 3 - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

None reported.

12.



LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year ended June 30, 2016

Finding 2015-001 — OPEB Benefits and Plan Provisions (Significant Deficiency)

Condition: Management determined that certain benefit provisions were not included in the actuarial
calculation used to measure the Net OPEB Obligation liability on LACMTA’s statement of net position.
Management discovered that lifetime benefits for ATU employees were not reflected in the previous
valuations of the net OPEB obligation. With the addition of the OPEB lifetime benefit provision, the
calculation of the prior Annual Required Contributions were understated and resulted in the Net OPEB
Obligation liability being understated. This benefit plan provision did not affect any of the other LACMTA
OPEB plans.

Status: Resolved

Finding 2015-002 — Preparation of Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Material Weakness)
Condition: The Transportation Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (TIFIA) Program (CFDA # 20.223)
activity was not identified by management as federal expenditures in the fiscal year 2015 SEFA and instead
was included in the Local Share column.

Status: As of March 29, 2018 reporting date, this matter is considered resolved.
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